
Chester County Council Meeting June 7th,2021    1 

  CHESTER COUNTY COUNCIL MEETING 
R. Carlisle Roddey Chester County Government Complex

          1476 J.A. Cochran Bypass 
 Monday, June 7, 2021 at 6:00 PM 

Interim Supervisor Dr. Wylie Frederick Presiding 

 Agenda 

1. Call to Order

2. Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation

3. Approval of Minutes
a. May 17th, 2021 Minutes. Pg. 4

4. Citizen Comments

5. Public Hearing

a. 3rd Reading of 2021-3 An Ordinance Authorizing, Pursuant To Title 12, Chapter 44 Of The Code Of
Laws Of South Carolina 1976, As Amended, The Execution And Delivery Of A Fee-In-Lieu Of Ad Valorem
Taxes Agreement By And Between Chester County, South Carolina, And E. & J. Gallo Winery, Formerly
Identified As Project Magma, Acting For Itself, One Or More Current Or Future Affiliates And Other Project
Companies (Collectively, “Company”); and an Incentive Agreement Between the County and the Company;
Providing For A Special Source Revenue Credit; Modifying A Joint County Industrial And Business Park Of
Chester And York Counties So As To Enlarge The Park; Authorizing The Execution And Delivery Of One
Or More Grant Agreements; And Other Related Matters.

6. Ordinances/Resolutions/Proclamations

a. 3rd Reading of 2021-3 An Ordinance Authorizing, Pursuant To Title 12, Chapter 44 Of The Code Of
Laws Of South Carolina 1976, As Amended, The Execution And Delivery Of A Fee-In-Lieu Of Ad Valorem
Taxes Agreement By And Between Chester County, South Carolina, And E. & J. Gallo Winery, Formerly
Identified As Project Magma, Acting For Itself, One Or More Current Or Future Affiliates And Other Project
Companies (Collectively, “Company”); and an Incentive Agreement Between the County and the Company;
Providing For A Special Source Revenue Credit; Modifying A Joint County Industrial And Business Park
Of Chester And York Counties So As To Enlarge The Park; Authorizing The Execution And Delivery Of
One Or More Grant Agreements; And Other Related Matters. Pg. 7

b. 2nd Reading of 2021-4 Chester County Fiscal Year 2021/2022 Budget to Establish Operating And Capital
Budgets For The Operation Of The County Government Of Chester County, South Carolina For The Fiscal
Year Commencing  July 1, 2021; To Provide For The Levy Of Taxes For Chester County For The Fiscal
Year Commencing July 1, 2021; To Provide For The Expenditure Of Tax Revenues And Other County
Funds; To Provide For Other County Purposes; To Authorize The County To Borrow Money In Anticipation
Of Taxes And To Provide For The Repayment Of Sums Borrowed By The County Governing Body; To
Provide For The Payment Of Tort Claims And Worker's Compensation Claims Against Chester County; To
Provide For Certain Fiscal And Other Matters Relating To County Government. Pg. 55

c. 1st Reading of 2021-8 in title only -Fund Balance Ordinance.



Chester County Council Meeting June 7th,2021    2 

d. Resolution 2021-11 Identifying the Capital Projects as Part of a Program of General Obligation Borrowing;
And Other Related Matters. Pg. 67

7. Old Business

a. 3rd Reading of CCMA21-12: Michael D. Cannon of MC Real Estate, LLC request Tax Map #
125-00-00-010-000 located on Colonels Point Parkway be rezoned from ID-2 (Limited Industrial) to ID-3 (General
Industrial). Planning Commission vote 6-0 to approve with a reverter clause if the business closes. Pg. 69

b. 3rd Reading of CCMA21-13: Michael R. Mills, agent for JAH Properties LLC request Tax Map # 087-00-00-
001- 000 (portion of) located along Darby Road Chester SC be rezoned from R2 (Rural Two) to RS-1 (Single Family)
Planning Commission voted 6-0 to approve. Pg. 73

c. Update regarding the recreation agreement between Chester County and Great Falls. Councilman Vaughn. Pg.76

8. New Business
a. Council to authorize the Sheriff’s Department to apply for (COSSAP) Comprehensive Opioid, Stimulant and
Substance Abuse Site Based Program grant for $600,000 dollars with no match.  -Sheriff Dorsey. Pg. 89

b. Council to authorize the Sheriff’s Department to apply for COPS Office Hiring program grant for $480,000
dollars with a 25% match. Sheriff Dorsey. Pg. 97

c. Council to authorize the Sheriff’s Department to apply for Smart Policing Initiative grant for $500,000 with no
match. Sheriff Dorsey. Pg. 104

d. 1st Reading of CCMA21-14: Judy Funderburk request Tax Map # 158-01-08-007-000 located at 1474 Catawba
River Road, Fort Lawn, SC be rezoned from R1 (Rural One) to RG-2 (General Residential). Planning Commission

voted 6-0 to Deny. Pg. 111

e. 1st Reading of CCMA21-15:  JDSI, LLC by Judson Stringfellow request Tax Map # 124-00-00-024-000
located off Hwy 9, Richburg, SC be rezoned from RS-1 (Single Family) to PD (Planned Development) Planning

Commission voted 4-2 to approve. Pg. 115

f. 1st Reading of CCMA21-16:  JDSI, LLC by Judson Stringfellow request Tax Map # 124-00-00-027-000
located off Hwy 9, Richburg, SC be rezoned from R2 (Rural Two) to PD (Planned Development) Planning

Commission voted 4-2 to approve. Pg. 138

g. Discuss the naming of an entrance at Chester Technology Park. -County Council. Pg. 149

9. Boards and Commissions-None

10. Executive Session

a. Receive legal advice regarding IBHS. Attorney Winters.
b. Receive legal advice regarding update on Project Magma. Attorney Winters.
c. Receive legal advice regarding Economic Development Grant.

11. Council Actions Following Executive Session

a. Action taken on legal advice regarding IBHS.
b. Action taken on legal advice regarding update on Project Magma.
c. Action taken on legal advice regarding Economic Development Grant.



Chester County Council Meeting June 7th,2021    3 

12. Council Comments

13. Adjourn

Pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act, the Chester News & Reporter, The Herald in Rock Hill, SC, WSOC-TV, Channel 9 Eyewitness News, the Mfg. Housing 
Institute of SC, WRHI Radio Station, C&N2 News, WCNC News and Capitol Consultants were notified and a notice was posted on the bulletin board at the Chester 
County Government Building 24 hours prior to the meeting. 

     * * * P U B L I C  N O T I C E * * *    

Chester County Council has relaxed some of the COVID measures put into place for personal appearances at County Council 
meetings and will now allow up to seventeen (17) citizens into the Council meeting room provided that masks are kept on 
throughout the meeting and individuals in attendance maintain social distancing at all times.  As COVID conditions improve, 
Council does hope to allow for more personal attendance at County Council meetings.  

Any citizen who wishes to make a public comment at the County Council meetings can do so in the following ways: 

1. You may submit your comments in writing to County Council by emailing Karen Lee, klee@chestercounty.org.

2. You may submit your comments by mail: Chester County Clerk to Council, Karen Lee, PO Box 580, Chester, SC 29706.

3. Anyone who wishes to appear in person before Council must register with the Chester County Clerk to Council by phone
803-377-7852 or by email at klee@chestercounty.org no later than 10:00 am on the day of the Council meeting. Such
appearance will be limited to one (1) person to be permitted to enter the building while maintaining social distancing.
The Clerk will confirm the appointment back to the requestor. A County employee will be on hand to open the back door
of the Government Complex at the registered time. The individual may appear before Council for no more than three (3)
minutes and will be required to leave the building immediately following their address to Council. Groups of presenters
will not be permitted at this time, nor will individuals who have not registered by the deadline. All rules of social
distancing as recommended by the CDC and the etiquette procedures of the County Council must be followed. Chester
County Council remains committed and receptive to the comments of the citizens of Chester County and while the
Council does not like these restrictions, they are being done in the interest of everyone’s health.

Guidelines for Addressing Council 

   Citizens Comments: 

• Each citizen will be limited to three minutes.

Public Hearings: 

• Each speaker will be limited to three-minutes.
When introduced: 

• Approach the podium, state your name and address.
• Speak loudly and clearly making sure that the microphone is not obstructed.
• Do not address the audience – direct all comments to Council.
• Do not approach the Council table unless directed.

Anyone addressing Council will be called out of order if you: 

• Use profanity.
• Stray from the subject.
• Make comments personally attacking an individual member of Council.

mailto:klee@chestercounty.org
mailto:klee@chestercounty.org


 Chester County Council Meeting May 17th, 2021   1 

  CHESTER COUNTY COUNCIL MINUTES 
R. Carlisle Roddey Chester County Government Complex

1476 J.A. Cochran Bypass Chester, SC 29706 
Monday, May 17th, 2021 at 6:00 PM 

   Present:  Interim Chairman Dr. Wylie Frederick, Vice Chairman Joe Branham, Councilman Brad Jordan,  
   Councilman Mike Vaughn, Councilwoman Mary Guy, Councilman Pete Wilson, Clerk to Council Karen Lee  
   and County Attorney Joanie Winters.  Councilman William Killian arrived at 6:11 PM. Rules of Procedure Section 2-59  
   and 60 were suspended.  

1. Call to Order- Interim Chairman Dr. Frederick called the meeting to order.

2. Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation- Pledge was recited in unison; Councilwoman Guy gave the
invocation.

3. Approval of Minutes
a. April 29th, 2021 Special Called Meeting.
Vice Chairman Branham motioned to approve, second by Councilwoman Guy. Vote was 5-0 to approve.

b. May 3rd, 2021 Council Meeting.
Councilwoman Guy motioned to approve, second by Councilman Vaughn. Vote was 4-0 approve Councilman
Wilson was not in attendance for the May 3rd meeting and did not vote.

c. May 7th, 2021 Special Called Meeting
Vice Chairman Branham motioned to approve, second by Councilman Jordan. Vote was 5-0 to approve.

4. Citizen Comments-No one signed up to speak.

5. Public Hearing- None

6. Ordinances/Resolutions/Proclamations
a. 1st Reading of Ordinance 2021-4 In Title Only Chester County Fiscal Year 2021/2022 Budget to Establish
Operating And Capital Budgets For The Operation Of The County Government Of Chester County, South
Carolina For The Fiscal Year Commencing  July 1, 2021; To Provide For The Levy Of Taxes For Chester
County For The Fiscal Year Commencing July 1, 2021; To Provide For The Expenditure Of Tax Revenues
And Other County Funds; To Provide For Other County Purposes; To Authorize The County To Borrow
Money In Anticipation Of Taxes And To Provide For The Repayment Of Sums Borrowed By The County
Governing Body; To Provide For The Payment Of Tort Claims And Worker's Compensation Claims
Against Chester County; To Provide For Certain Fiscal And Other Matters Relating To County
Government. Councilman Vaughn motioned to approve in title only, second by Councilman Wilson. Vote 5-0 to
approve.

b. Resolution 2021-9 To adopt a lease agreement for the Sheriff’s Substation in Richburg.
Doug McMurray stated the substation was located 2827 Lancaster Hwy in Richburg, SC, this would give a more
feasible and permanent location for the Sheriff’s office for citizens as well as a benefit for deputies they plan to
put in a data line that would run around $1800.00 dollars this would provide the deputies a place to fill out
paperwork instead of going back to the main office in Chester. Vice Chairman Branham motioned to approve,
second by Councilman Jordan. Vote 5-0 to approve.



 Chester County Council Meeting May 17th, 2021   2 

c. Resolution 2021-10 Change the name on the Organizational Chart from Tax Assessor to Assessor.
Attorney Winters stated the interim Assessor had concerns regarding the name since it did not comport with state
law. Section 12-37-90 refers to the position as Assessor and not Tax Assessor and had asked to have it changed on
the organizational chart. It would not change the position or the duties just the name. It would also incur cost to
change business cards, letterheads etc. Councilman Wilson motioned to approve, second by Councilman Jordan.
Vote 5-0 to approve.

7. Old Business
a. 2nd Reading of CCMA21-12: Michael D. Cannon of MC Real Estate, LLC request Tax Map # 125-00-00-
010-000 located on Colonels Point Parkway be rezoned from ID-2 (Limited Industrial) to ID-3 (General
Industrial). Planning Commission vote 6-0 to approve with a reverter clause if the business closes.

Vice Chairman Branham motioned to approve, second by Councilwoman Guy.
Councilman Jordan stated he was still concerned if this went to ID3 the applicant could rent out the other portion
of the building without the approval of Council and asked Attorney Winters if they could place an addition to the
reverter clause. Attorney Winters stated no, she had spoken to Mike Levister, Planning Director and there was not
a real solution, parcels are rezoned and not buildings. Vice Chairman Branham suggested the applicant be
contacted to see if he would reduce the size of the building and not have tenants before the third reading.
Vote was 1-5 to deny. Councilwoman Guy approved; rest of Council denied the request.

b. 2nd Reading of CCMA21-13: Michael R. Mills, agent for JAH Properties LLC request Tax Map # 087-
00-00-001-000 (portion of) located along Darby Road, Chester SC be rezoned from R2 (Rural Two) to RS-
1 (Single Family) Planning Commission voted 6-0 to approve. Councilwoman Guy stated the owner wanted to
combine both properties to make one and have the zoning as RS1. Councilwoman Guy motioned to approve,
second by Councilman Vaughn. Vote 6-0 to approve.

c. Discussion regarding the recreation agreement between Chester County and Great Falls. Councilman
Vaughn. Councilman Vaughn stated the recreation commission reviewed and approved the contract at their last
meeting, Great Falls Town Mayor Pro Tem Glen Smith reviewed it as well. Some of the language such as leased
properties would be removed since there isn’t leased properties in Great Falls, the agreement would be for twenty-
five years. He stated this would provide recreational opportunities for the entire County not only Great Falls.
Councilman Vaughn motioned to approve with changes, second by Councilman Jordan.  Councilman Vaughn
acknowledged Sunset park had been neglected over the years and had a lot of potential to rent out. Council asked
Dr. Frederick to provide financial data of what had been spent on other municipalities regarding recreation, have
Robert Hall, Public Works Director look at the parks and see what needed corrected and what the cost would be
to bring the park back up to standard. Councilman Wilson asked to have pictures of Sunset Park with the other
requested information in the June 7th packet. Councilman Jordan withdrew his second, Councilman Vaughn
withdrew his motion. Tabled to the June 7th meeting.

8. New Business

a. Introduction of Brun DMC for multiple County Projects– Jarrett Davis and Marc Brun.
Mr. Davis stated his company will help facilitate County projects along with capital projects and
upcoming projects currently on the agenda. Their job was to get the projects out to fruition and make
sure that they were developing the right standards of what the County expresses and desires for the
funds and fiduciary duties.

b. Award of bid for Site/Civil Construction of North Chester Fire Station – Susan Cok.
Councilman Wilson motioned to approve $83,700 dollars, second by Vice Chairman Branham. Vote 6-0 to
approve.



 Chester County Council Meeting May 17th, 2021   3 

9. Boards and Commissions

a. Resignation from Parks and Recreation Board. -Interim Chairman Frederick.
Councilwoman Guy motioned to accept Wade Young’s resignation, second by Councilman Jordan.
Vote 6-0 to accept.

b. Resignation from the Gateway Steering Committee -County Council.
Vice Chairman Branham motioned to accept Philip Thompson-King’s resignation, second by Councilman Jordan.
Vote 6-0 to approve.

10. Executive Session
Councilwoman Guy motioned to go into Executive Session, second by Councilman Killian.
Vote 6-0 to approve.
a. Receive legal advice regarding IBHS. Attorney Winters

b. Receive legal advice regarding Project Magma. Attorney Winters.

c. Receive legal advice regarding the State of Emergency Update. Attorney Winters.

11. Council Actions Following Executive Session
Councilman Vaughn motioned to go back to Regular Session, second by Vice Chairman Branham.
Vote 6-0 to approve.
a. Action taken regarding legal advice for IBHS.

(i) 1st Reading of Ordinance 2021-6 An Ordinance Authorizing (1) The Execution And Delivery Of A Second
Amendment To That Certain Special Source Credit Agreement Previously Entered Into By And Between
Chester County, South Carolina And Insurance Institute For Business And Home Safety; And (2) Other
Matters Related Thereto. Taken as information.

b. Action taken regarding legal advice for Project Magma. Taken as information.

c. Action taken regarding legal advice of the State of Emergency Update.
Councilwoman Guy motioned to extend the State of Emergency rules until June 7th, 2021 where Council would
further evaluate, second by Councilman Killian. Vote 6-0 to approve.

12. Council Comments-None

13. Adjourn
Councilwoman Guy motioned to adjourn, second by Councilman Killian. Vote 6-0 to approve.

Time: 8:30 PM

Pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act, the Chester News & Reporter, The Herald in Rock Hill, SC, WSOC-TV, Channel 9 Eyewitness News, the 
Mfg. Housing Institute of SC, WRHI Radio Station, C&N2 News, WCNC News and Capitol Consultants were notified and a notice was posted on the 
bulletin board at the Chester County Government Building 24 hours prior to the meeting.



CHESTER COUNTY 

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-3 

AUTHORIZING, PURSUANT TO TITLE 12, CHAPTER 44 OF THE 

CODE OF LAWS OF SOUTH CAROLINA 1976, AS AMENDED, THE 

EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A FEE-IN-LIEU OF AD VALOREM 

TAXES AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH 

CAROLINA, AND A COMPANY IDENTIFIED FOR THE TIME BEING 

AS PROJECT MAGMA, ACTING FOR ITSELF, ONE OR MORE 
CURRENT OR FUTURE AFFILIATES AND OTHER PROJECT 

COMPANIES (COLLECTIVELY, "COMP ANY") AND AN INCENTIVE 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY AND THE COMPANY; 

PROVIDING FOR A FEE-IN-LIEU OF AD V ALOREM TAXES 

INCENTIVE; PROVIDING FOR A SPECIAL SOURCE REVENUE 

CREDIT; MODIFYING A JOINT COUNTY INDUSTRIAL AND 

BUSINESS PARK OF CHESTER AND YORK COUNTIES SO AS TO 

ENLARGE THE PARK; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND 

DELIVERY OF ONE OR MORE GRANT AGREEMENTS; AND OTHER 

RELATED MATTERS. 

WHEREAS, Chester County, South Carolina ("County"), acting by and through its County Council 
("Council"), is authorized and empowered, under and pursuant to the provisions of the Code of Laws of 
South Carolina 1976, as amended through the date hereof ("Code"),. particularly Title 12, Chapter 44 thereof 
(''Negotiated FTLOT Act") and Title 4, Chapter l of the Code (''Multi-County Park Act" or, as to Section 
4-1-175 thereof. and, by incorporation, Section 4-29-68 of the Code, "Special Source Act'') (collectively,
"Act''), and by Article VIII, Section 13 of the South Carolina Constitution: (i) to enter into agreements with
certain investors- to establish projects through which the economic development of the State of South
Carolina ("State") will be promoted and trade developed, thus utilizing and employing the manpower,
agricultural products, and natural resources of the State; (ii) to covenant with such investors to accept certain
fee in lieu of ad valorem ta."< (·'FILOT°') payments, including, but not limited to1 negotiated FJLOT
(''Negotiated FILOT') payments, and granting certain special source revenue credits ("SSRCs") to pay
costs of designing, acquiring, constructing improving or expanding (i) infrastructure serving a project or
the County, and (ii) for improved or unimproved real estate and personal property including machinery and
equipment used in the opetating of a manufacturing or commercial enterprise ("Infrastructure"); and (iii)
to create or expand, in conjunction with one or more other counties, a multi-county industrial or business
park to allow such special source revenue credits and certain enhanced income tax credits to such investors;

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Title 4, Section I of the Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended 
("Park Act''), the County and York County entered into that certain Master Agreement Governing the York
Chester Industrial Park between Chester County, South Carolina, and York County, South Carolina, 
effective December 3 I, 20 I 2, (as amended, modified, and supplemented, collectively, "Park Agreement'') 
whereby the County and York County agreed to develop a joint county industrial or bt1siness park eligible 
to include property located in either the County or York County ("Park"); 

WHEREAS, the property located in the Park is exempt from ad valorem taxation and the owners of 
such property pay a non-negotiated fee in lieu of tax payment in the absence of a Negotiated FI LOT ("Non
Negotiated FILOT"); 

WHEREAS, Section l.01 of the Park Agreement establishes the procedure for enlargement of the 
boundaries of the Park to include additional prnperty; 

WHEREAS, a company identified for the time being as Project MAGMA, acting for itself, one or more 
current or future affiliates and other project sponsors (collectively, "Company") proposes to invest in, or 
cause others to invest in, the establishment or expansion of a manufacturing operation in the County 
("Project''), which the Company expects will result in the investment of approximately $423,000,000 in 
taxable property and the creation of approximately 496 new, full-time equivalent jobs; 

PAGE I Ofl 



WHEREAS, the County, having determined that an enlargement of the boundaries of the Park would 
promote economic development and thus provide additional employment and investment opportunities 
within the said County and York County, desires to enlarge the boundaries of the Park to include therein 
certain property, as described in greater detail on the attached Exhibit A and located in Chester County 
("Project MAGMA Property'"); 

WHEREAS. pursuant to an lnducement Resolution dated as of February I, 2021.. the County identified 
the Project as a "project" as provided in the Act and authorized an Incentive Agreement, a copy of which 
is attached hereto as Exhibit B; 

WHEREAS, the Company has caused to be prepared and presented to this meeting the form of the Fee 
in Lieu of Ad Valorem Taxes and Special Source Revenue Credit Agreement. attached as Exhibit C, by and 
between the County and the Company ("Fee Agreement'"), which provides for (i) fee in lieu of tax payments 
utilizing a 4% assessment ratio for a period of 50 years for the Project or each component thereof placed in 
service during the maximum investment period allowed for enhanced investments as extended pursuant to 
the Act; and (ii) SSRCs with a tenn of 60 years with respect to the Negotiated FILOT payments and any 
Non-Negotiated FlLOT payments; and 

WHEREAS, it appears that the Fee Agreement, which is now before this meeting, is in appropriate 
fonn and is an appropriate instrument to be executed and delivered by the County for the purposes intended. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council, as follows: 

Section 1. Stal11tory Fi11di11gs. Based solely on infonnation provided to the County by the Company, 
it is hereby found, determined, and declared by the County Council, as follows: 

(a) The Project will constit�1te a ·'project" as that term is referred to and defined in the Act, and
the County's actions herein will subserve the purposes and in all respects conform to the provisions 
and requirements of the Act; 

(b) The Project and the payments in lieu of taxes set forth herein are beneficial to the County,
and the County has evaluated the Project based on all criteria prescribed by law, including the 
anticipated dollar amount and nature of the investment to be made and the anticipated costs and 
benefits to the County; 

(c) The Project is anticipated to benefit the general public welfare of the County by providing
services, employment, recreation, or other public benefits not otherwise adequately provided 
locally: 

(d) The Project gives rise to no pecuniary liability of the County or any incorporated
mUhicipality or a charge against the general credit or taxing power of either; 

(e) The purposes to be accomplished by the Project. i.e., economic development, creation of
jobs, and addition to the tax base of the County, are proper governmental and public purposes; 

(f) The inducement of the location or expansion of the Project within the County and State is
of paramount importance; and 

(g) The anticipated benefits of the Project to the public will be greater than the costs.

Section 2. Authorization of Fee Agreement and Ratification of Incentive Agreement. To promote 
industry, develop trade, and utilize and employ the manpower, products, and natural resources of the State 
by assisting the Company to expand or locate a commercial facility in the State, the Fee Agreement and the 
Jncentive Agreement are authorized, ratified, and approved, provided, however, to the extent of any conflict 
between the Fee Agreement and the Incentive Agreement, the Fee Agreement controls. 

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-3 

PM:£20fl 



ORDINANCE NO. 202'1-3 

Section 3. Approval of Form of Fee Agreeme11t. The fo1m of the Fee Agreement presented at this 
meeting, as attached as Exhibit C, is approved, and all of the tenns are incorporated in this Ordinance by 
reference as if the Fee Agreement were set out in this Ordinance in its entirety. The Chairman of the County 
Council/County Supervisor, and the Clerk to County Council are each authorized, empowered, and directed 
to execute, acknowledge, and deliver the Fee Agreement in the name of and on behalf of the County, and 
to cause the executed Fee Agreement to be delivered to the Company. The fee Agreement is to be in 
substantially the form now before this meeting, with such changes therein as shall not be materially adverse 
to the County and as shall be approved by the officials of the County executing the same, on the advice of 
Counsel to the County, such official's execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of such official's 
approval of any and all changes or revisions therein from the form of the Fee Agreement now before this 
meeting. 

Section 4. Enl11rgeme11t of the Pt1rk. The enlargement of the boundaries of tbe Park is hereby 
authorized and approved. 

Section 5. Extension of Investment Period a11d Term of tl,e Fee Agreement. The investment period 
under the Fee Agreement is hereby extended by five years and the term of the Fee Agreement is hereby 
extended by ten years. 

Section 6. Authorizatio11 for County Officia/.1; to Execute Documents. The Interim Chairman of the 
County Council/Interim County Supervisor, and the Clerk to County Council, for and on behalf of the 
County, are each authorized and directed to do any and all things reasonably necessa1y and prudent to effect 
the execution and delivery of the Fee Agreement and the performance of all obligations of the County under 
and purs1.1ant to the Fee Agreement. 

Section 7. General Repealer. All orders, resolutions, ordinances, and parts thereof in conflict 
herewith are, to the extent of such conflict, repealed, and this Ordinahce shall take effect and be in full force 
from and after its passage and approval. 

!ONE SIGN A TUR�: PAGF. ANO TIIRl!E E'..XIIU!ITS FOL,Lt>IVI 
I R•:MAINOKR OP PACE INTENTIONAlal,V 81.ANKI 

PAGE3or2 





















































































































SOUTH CAROLINA   )  RESOLUTION 2021-11 OF 
)  CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

CHESTER COUNTY   ) 

IDENTIFYING THE CAPITAL PROJECTS AS PART OF A 
PROGRAM OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BORROWING; AND 
OTHER RELATED MATTERS. 

THE CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, COUNTY COUNCIL RESOLVES: 

SECTION 1. According to the requirements of Section 20 of the County’s Ordinance, enacted by the 
County Council (“Council”) of Chester County, South Carolina (“County”), on April 18, 2016 (“Bond 
Ordinance”), the Council adopts the following: 

(a) The assessed valuation of all property in the County as of June 30, 2020, for purposes of computation 
of the Bonded Debt Limit, is not less than $137,437,592.00. Eight percent of this assessed valuation is 
$10,995,007 (“County’s Bonded Debt Limit”). As of the date of this Resolution, the County has outstanding 
no more than $5,486,100 of general obligation indebtedness subject to the County’s Bonded Debt Limit. 
As of the adoption of this Ordinance, the difference between the County’s Bonded Debt Limit and the 
principal amount of the outstanding general obligation indebtedness subject to the County’s Bonded Debt 
Limit (“Available Debt Limit”) is the amount of general obligation indebtedness which the County may 
incur without a referendum, which is no less than: $5,508,907; 

(b) The list of capital projects (with approximate costs) to be funded is attached to this Resolution as 
Exhibit A; and 

(c) Including the series of bonds to be issued to fund the capital projects listed on Exhibit A plus costs 
of issuance related to the bonds, the calendar year 2021 aggregate par amount of bonds issued according to 
the Bond Ordinance does not exceed the lesser of: (1) $2,500,000 and (2) the County’s Available Debt 
Limit in general obligation bonds. 

SECTION 2. All resolutions and parts thereof in conflict herewith are, to the extent of such conflict, 
repealed. 

RESOLVED: June 7, 2021 

CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

       
Interim Chairman/Supervisor 
Chester County Council 

(SEAL) 
ATTEST: 

       
Clerk to Council 

  



2 

     Resolution 2021-11 

 

EXHIBIT A 

$1,575,000 
(AVAILABLE FUNDS FOR PROJECTS, DOES NOT INCLUDE COSTS OF ISSUANCE) 

 
DEPARTMENT PROJECT° 

 
COST 

106 - FINANCE  DOCUMENT MANAGEMENT SYSTEM   
 

43,325.00 
150 - CORONER  4X4 EXTENDED CAB TRUCK 

(43,358.30 - 14,000 FROM CORONER ACCOUNT) 
29,359.00 

155 - VOTER REGISTRATION GENERATOR FOR VOTER REGISTRATION BUILDING  
 

35,000.00 
155 - VOTER REGISTRATION SECURITY AND PANIC ALARMS 

 
15,000.00 

160 - COUNTY GARAGE VEHICLE LIFT WITH JACKS  
 

15,500.00 
170 - BUILDING MAINTENANCE NEW ZERO-TURN MOWERS (4 @ 10,000) 

 
40,000.00 

170 - BUILDING MAINTENANCE UTILITY BED WORK TRUCKS (4 TRUCK @ 35,000 PER TRUCK) 
 

140,000.00 
176 - IT UPGRADE HOST SERVERS 

 
15,000.00 

176 - IT COMPUTER HARDWARE UPGRADES 
 

25,000.00 
301 - SHERIFF'S DEPT REPLACEMENT PATROL CARS (5 @ 55,223 PER VEHICLE) 

 
276,115.00 

301 - SHERIFF'S DEPT ESTABLISH LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICE IN RICHBURG AREA  
 

57,101.00 
340 - DETENTION CENTER REPLACE TRAINING EQUIPMENT  

 
10,000.00 

340 - DETENTION CENTER REPLACE PLUMBING FIXTURES AND PARTS  
 

12,000.00 
340 - DETENTION CENTER REPLACE/REPAIR BATHROOM  

 
10,000.00 

340 - DETENTION CENTER REPLACE HVAC CONTROL SYSTEM  
 

60,000.00 
345 - FIRE COORDINATOR (2) SWIFTWATER RAPID TEAM BOATS AND EQUIPMENT 

 
30,000.00 

350 - RURAL FIRE NEW FIRE ENGINE (NORTH CHESTER) 
 

537,000.00 
350 - RURAL FIRE EXTRACTOR/WASHER FOR TURNOUT GEAR (LANDO) 

 
8,100.00 

350 - RURAL FIRE (3) SET OF TURNOUT GEAR, (4) PAGERS (NORTH CHESTER) 
 

7,000.00 
350 - RURAL FIRE DARLEY AGE PUMP (RICHBURG) 

 
9,500.00 

350 - RURAL FIRE 1,000 GPM PUMP (SOUTH CHESTER) 
 

20,000.00 
401 - ROADS TRACTOR WITH BOOM MOWER  

 
160,000.00 

501 - EMS POWER LOAD FOR NEW AMBULANCE  
 

20,000.00 

°and related equipment and any other capital items that do not exceed, 
individually or in aggregate, 1% of the Bond’s par amount. 







Chester County, South Ca1·01ina 
Department of Planning, Building & Zoning 
1476 J.A. Cochran Bypass 
Chester� SC 29706 

Zoning Map Ame11dme11t (Rezoning) Application 
Fee: $150.00 

Meeting Date: Lf. �1). :J J Case# CCmf/9, }- 12> Invoice # _ __.c.3_'7_3D ___ _ 
The applicant hereby requests that the property described to be rezoned from �pd:- to .I7) '.J

Cnpi• ofplllf 11111st be presented with the 11pplicario11 re1111esr 

Designation of Agent (complete only if owner is not applicant): I (we) hereby appoint the person named as applicant as 
my (our) agent to represent me (us) in this request for rezoning. A Corporate Resolution letter or a permission letter 
must be presented at the time of application request. NAICS CODE:.-=.5i,=i:<-=:i___,1,__1-"�-----------

Property Address Information 
Property address: Colt>" w.ls p.,__
Tax Map Number: 1:i.S:·Q0-00�01<2 • oot> 

Any structures on the property: yes---· no ,X 
on plat or blank paper. 

. If you checked yes, draw locations of structures 

PLEASE PRINT: 
Applicant (s): /11, 9'.'!?<-1 �- · klnao,-., fi.c Me, . Re,,,l €.sok 1.. '- c; Address t?o Dllt'X 3 :i I C CoLvm61..,,, cc.... :;2.c;�3 lJ 
Telephone:    work __________ _ 
E-Mail Address:  

Owner(s) if other than applicant(s): _....;S:c....=e-=e___,_\ .:.e...,_,+k;'-==-r _________________ _ 
Address:------------------------------------
Telephone: ___________ cell __________ work __________ _ 
E-Mail Address:----------------------------------

1 (we) hereby agree t · · · (we) have presented is correct. Insufficient information may result
in a denial of our re 

Owner's signature: Date: '?i /03 /2:,?. I _,,,__-=-.......,�r'--:i
.-

----------- r 7 

Applicant signature: __ .::;.::;:"""-..,,__;::....:. ______________ -'Date: 3-J-;;20 ;;?,/ 

CANCELLA TJON MAY RESULT IN AN ADDITIONAL FEE OF SI 50.00. SOMEONE MAY REPRESENT YOU AT THE MEET/NG. 

Planning/Plannlng&Zoning/CountyofChes1cr/Forms/RczoningApplicn1ion 

Ccm11 J,/ �13 behind +his. 
mi'c.nae.l R. tni I ls a_gen+ tor Jfl-H Prope�-he..s











Draft 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  )  LEASE AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 

CHESTER COUNTY   )          CHESTER COUNTY AND THE TOWN OF GREAT FALLS 

 

This Lease Agreement made and entered into at Great Falls, South Carolina this ______ day of 

___________,2021.  pursuant to resolution an Ordinance passed and adopted upon its final 

reading by the Chester County Council Meeting duly assembled on the______ day of 

_________, 2021 and pursuant to an Ordinance passed and adopted upon its final reading by 

the Great Falls Town Council meeting duly assembled on the _____ day of ___________, 2021, 

said Town Council and County Council both being bodies politic existing and organized under 

the Laws of the State of S.C., South Carolina by and between the Town of Great Falls, 

hereinafter known as Lessor and Chester County hereinafter known as Lessee. 

 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 

  The intent of this agreement is for the County of Chester to lease as specified herein, all 

identified recreation property whether real, personal, or mixed owned by the Town of Great 

Falls.  

 
  The term of this Lease Contract and Agreement shall be twenty-five (25) years and the County 

hereby agrees to pay unto the Town of Great Falls the sum of one ($1.00) dollar per year until 

the conclusion of this lease term. Both parties understand that this agreement is the best 

interest of the citizens of the Town of Great Falls and County of Chester and in in furtherance of 

this objective, the County covenants to maintain the services and programs currently offered to 

the citizens of Great Falls and further expand upon those programs and services as presented 

aat the time of the signing of this instrument. 

 
  The real property covered under this Lease Contract and Agreement is attached todescribed in 

this instrument as under “Exhibit A” and is incorporated herein by reference.  These are 

currently the facilities the Town of Great Falls either owns or leases.  Upon signing this contract, 

the County agrees to maintain all current programs and /or services offered in these facilities 

Formatted: Line spacing:  1.5 lines

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Line spacing:  1.5 lines

Formatted: Line spacing:  1.5 lines

Formatted: Line spacing:  1.5 lines

Commented [JW1]: If you are leasing them from a third 
party, do you have the ability to sub-lease to the County?  
We would need a copy of those leases.   



Draft 

and covenants to expand these services and programs as envisioned by both parties.  Upon the 

signing of this instrument the County covenants to conform to all restrictions and/ obligations 

in any lease agreements and deed restrictions. and agrees to hold the Town harmless 

therefrom. 

 

The county agrees to abide by whatever deed restrictions or lease restrictions affecting the 

facilities subject to this Llease aAgreement between the County and Town.  The County hereby 

assumes any and all liability regarding these restrictions as well as any rent monies due for 

property surrounding any of these facilities.   

 
The County agrees to be solely responsible for all taxes and insurance on the property covered 

under this lease agreement. 

 
The County agrees to be solely responsible for all the upkeep and maintenance of all facilities 

and property owned by the Town covered in this lease agreement.  This covenant includes but 

it is not limited to, all repairs including ordinary wear and tear and grounds upkeep.  All 

betterments improvements become property of the Town provided they are deminimus atand 

the conclusion of the lease, unless otherwise agreed on during its term.  The County shall enter 

into discussion with the Town for any improvement that is above deminimus prior to making 

such improvements.  

 
The County hereby agrees to assume any and all liability for all property and/or programs 
contained in this lease agreement and further agrees to indemnify the City and hold the Town 
harmless therefrom. 
 
The County shall be solely responsible for the funding and budgeting of the Recreation 

Department and shall also solely be responsible for the purchasing, upkeep and maintenance 

and wear and tear of all equipment and /or facilities associated with the Recreation 

Department.  Should appropriations not be budgeted for such purpose, this Lease Agreement 

shall become void ab initio.   

 

Commented [JW2]: Again, need to see the leases.  We 
cannot agree to that which we have not seen. 

Commented [JW3]: County cannot indemnify.  Not 
enforceable 

Commented [JW4]: Same here.  Need to know what we 
are agreeing to. 

Formatted: Line spacing:  1.5 lines

Formatted: Line spacing:  1.5 lines

Formatted: Line spacing:  1.5 lines



Draft 

This lease agreement operates to consolidate recreation with the County of Chester.  It is the 

understanding and agreement of the parties hereto that this is clear “net” lease obligation, the 

County to bear all reasonable expenses and make all payments consistent with the principal of 

the “net “ lease; and the County hereby assumes and agrees to perform all duties and 

obligations with relation to rRecreation Department , the deminimus improvements thereon, 

and the appurtenances thereto and the use, operation , and maintenance thereof, even though 

such duties and obligations would otherwise be construed  to be those of the Town of Great 

Falls.    

 
The County shall have the same right as the Town has as owner under all guaranties and 

warranties of the facilities and the Town shall assign such guaranties and warranties to the 

County. 

 
The county agrees and covenants to pay all utility charges, including but not limiting to water, 

gas, electricity, sewage or removal of waste material used on or arising from the use of the 

defined facilities in Exhibit A under this lLease aAgreement and to pay the same monthly or as 

they shall become due.  Deposits on utility accounts, if any, will remain on account with the 

utility company. 

 
The County may not assign or sublet this Lease Agreement without the expressed written 

approval of the Town.  The parties hereto agree that if any of premises, property or equipment 

is partially or totally destroyed or damaged by fire or other hazard, that the County shall 

promptly repair and/restore such facilities, property, or equipment as soon as it is practical.  All 

insurance covering such hazards shall be borne solely by the County.  

 
This Lease Contract and Agreement may not be altered or rescinded without 2/3 vote of either 

council except as provided herein. 

 
In the event either party to this contract wishes to withdraw from the Agreement with or 

without reasons, becomes disillusioned over the operation of the agreement, such party may 

withdraw from the agreement upon giving the other party at least ninety (90) days written 

Formatted: Line spacing:  1.5 lines

Formatted: Line spacing:  1.5 lines

Formatted: Line spacing:  1.5 lines

Formatted: Line spacing:  1.5 lines

Formatted: Line spacing:  1.5 lines

Formatted: Line spacing:  1.5 lines



Draft 

notice, and both parties do agree to the same, by 2/3 vote, of their respective council.which 

withdrawal shall be ratified by a 2/3 vote of each parties’ council. 

 
IN WITNESSETH WHEREOF, the said parties have hereunto set their hands and seals the day and 

year first above written.  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Formatted: Line spacing:  1.5 lines



Draft 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
EXHIBIT A 
 

FACILITIES 
 

 
1.DAVID MINORS PARK-25 ACRES  
   (OWN) 

• 1 WALKING TRAIL 

• 3 STORAGE BUILDINGS 

• 1PICNIC SHELTER 

• 1 CONCESSION BUILDING-RESTROOMS 

• 2 LIGHTED TENNIS COURTS 

• 1 MULTIPURPOSE OUTSIDE PLAY COURT 

• 1 BASKETBALL COURT 

• 1 CONCESSION STAND-STORAGE BUILDING 

• 1 PLAYGROUND 

• 1 LOG CABIN 

2. REPUBLIC PARK-10 ACRES 

    (OWN) 

• 1 LIGHTED BALL FIELD 

• 1 STORAGE BUILDING 

• 2 CONCESSION STANDS 

• 1LIGHTED BASKETBALL COURT  

3. SUNSET PARK- 4 ACRES 

    (OWN) 

• 1 MEETING BUILDING 

• 1 PLAYGROUND 

• 1 LIGHTED OUTSIDE BASKETBALL COURT 

Commented [JW5]: Will need Tax Map Number to get 
property description for all three parks.   



 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

 


























	1. 6-7-2021
	2.  5-17-2021 Minutes
	3.  Ord. 2021-3  Project Magma_2021-06-04-081552560
	4.  2021-4 FY2022 Budget Ordinance
	5.  2021-11 Rolling Stock Chester Resolution (2021.06.01)B
	6. CCMA21-12 Michael Cannon_2021-04-21-152651937 (1)
	7. CCMA21-13 Michael R. Mills_2021-04-21-152651937 (2)
	8. contract between town of gf and cc 2021 with sunset park pictures
	9. BJA FY 21 Comprehensive Opioid, Stimulant and Substance Abuse Site Based Program
	10.  FY 21 Cops Hiring Program Solicitation
	11. BJA FY 21 Smart Policing Initiative
	12. CCMA21-14 Judy Funderburk_2021-05-25-141528466
	13. CCMA21-15 JDSI LLC_2021-05-25-141703528
	CHESWICK-5-25-21.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	PROPOSED LAND USE SITE PLAN
	PLACEHOLDER


	Sheets and Views
	CONCEPTUAL FUTURE MAIN ROAD NETWORK
	PLACEHOLDER


	Sheets and Views
	PROPOSED LAND USE SITE PLAN
	PLACEHOLDER




	14.CCMA21-16 JDSI LLC_2021-05-25-142035295
	CHESWICK-5-25-21.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	PROPOSED LAND USE SITE PLAN
	PLACEHOLDER


	Sheets and Views
	CONCEPTUAL FUTURE MAIN ROAD NETWORK
	PLACEHOLDER


	Sheets and Views
	PROPOSED LAND USE SITE PLAN
	PLACEHOLDER




	15. Unnamed Road location



